
Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

 Willamina City Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, June 4, 2019, 6:00 pm 
West Valley Fire Station 

825 NE Main St. 
Willamina, OR 97396 

 

  

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL  

FLAG SALUTE 

AGENDA ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND CORRECTIONS  

PUBLIC INPUT – BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE  

Public Input: Presentations not scheduled on the Agenda are limited to three (3) minutes. 
Longer presentations should be submitted to the City Recorder before the meeting. 
Anyone wishing to comment on an item of the Regular Agenda will need to sign in on the 
sign in form. 

CORRESPONDENCE – none 

CONSENT AGENDA   “(A listing of routine business items, which are adopted with one 
motion, without discussion. However, any COUNCILOR may request that an item be pulled 
from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action. The item is then not 
considered after the Consent Agenda items have been voted upon).” 

1. Check Registers – April 1 to 31, 2019 (information only) 
2. Financials April 31, 2019 
3. Minutes from the May 14, 2019 City Council Meeting 
4. Consideration of the use of the Tina Miller Park for the Summer Food Program 

Willamina School District 30-44-63J 

REGULAR AGENDA 

1. Council of Governments Contract 
2. Excessive Force – Resolution No.18-19-021 
3. Housing – Resolution No.18-19-022 
4. Master Fee Schedule Resolution No. 18-19-023 

1



Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

 
5. TGM Grant – Resolution No. 18-19-024 a Resolution in Support of the City’s 

Application for a 2019 Transportation and Growth Management Grant 
6. Police Services Contract 2019/2020 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Open the Public Hearing  

1. Proposed Public Hearing on the Use of State Revenue Sharing Funds in FY 
2019/2020 Budget 
 

Close the Public Hearing 

Open the Next Public Hearing  

1. The City Council will conduct a Budget Hearing to obtain public comment on the 
budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 as approved by the Budget 
Committee on May 21, 2019 (2019-2020 Budget Document is a separate hand 
out) 
 

Close the Public Hearing  

Open the next  Public Hearing  

1. The City of Willamina City Council will conduct a Public Hearing to obtain public 
comment on a request for an annual rate review for Recology Western Oregon 
which is proposed to be effective July 1, 2018. 
 

Close the Public Hearing (return to Regular Session to consider the following resolutions) 

1. Resolution 18-19-017 – A Resolution declaring the City’s Election to receive 
State Revenue funds 

2. Resolution 18-19-018 – A Resolution declaring 4 or more services 
3. Resolution 18-19-019 -  A Resolution adopting the FY 2019/2020 Budget, Make 

Appropriations & Imposing and Categorizing Taxes.  
4. Resolution 18-19-020 – A Resolution approving proposed 2019/2020 Rate 

Schedule for Recology Western Oregon  
 

 

 

 

 

2



Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (Items that require no Council action) - none 

MAYORS REPORT 

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

1. Cemetery Committee Liaison (Councilor Baller) 
2. Chamber Liaison (Councilor Wooden) 
3. Library Liaison (Councilor Lawson) 
4. YCOM Board (Councilor Baller) 
5. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS FROM CITY OFFICERS 

6. City Manager 
7. Sheriff’s Report 
 

EVENT CALENDAR- Informational 

 

 

 
 

 

 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



1 
 

May 14, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

City Of Willamina  
Minutes of the City Council 

May 14, 2019 
6:00 PM 

  
Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
Present at Meeting:  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Council President Rita Baller 
Councilor Bob Burr 
Councilor April Wooden 
Councilor Theresa McKnight 
Councilor Craig Johnson 
Councilor Roberta Lawson 
City Manager Kenna West 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Library Manager Sara Frost 
Yamhill County Sherriff Sergeant Russell Vandewettering 
Guests:  
Mary Jane Hollinger 
David Morey 
  
The regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Willamina was called to order at 6:00 PM 
on May 14, 2019 at the West Valley Fire Department by Mayor Ila Skyberg. The Flag Salute 
was recited. The Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard took roll and a quorum was present. 
  

I. Approval of Agenda 
  
The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved.  
  

II. Review of Previous Minutes 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved. 
  

III. Consideration of Open Issues 
  

1. Proclamation 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg presented Yamhill County Sergeant Russell Vandewettering with a 
proclamation declaring the week of May 12 through May 18, 2019 as National Police 
Week in the City of Willamina and May 15th as Peace Officers Memorial Day. There was 

56



2 
 

May 14, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

a moment of silence in honor of those law enforcement officers who have lost their lives 
in service to their communities.  
  

2. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg asked for a motion on the Consent Agenda from Council Present Baller.  
 
MOTION: Council President Baller moved to approve the consent agenda. Councilor 
Burr seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, Wooden, 
McKnight, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 
Council President Baller read the items on the Consent Agenda.  
1. Check Registers - March 1 to 31, 2019 
2. Financials March 31, 2019 
3. Minutes from the April 9, 2019 City Council Meeting 
  

3. Police Service Fee - Ordinance No. 678 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “should the City Council approve Ordinance 678 
enacting a Public Safety Fee. Mayor Skyberg called for a motion.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved that the Council adopt Ordinance 678 enacting a 
Public Safety Fee in accordance with Attachment A to Ordinance 678 and moved that the 
Deputy City Recorder read Ordinance 678 into the record in its entirety and then by title 
only. Councilor Baller seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, 
Wooden, McKnight, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor. 
 
Discussion: Councilor Burr asked if the customers could still write one check since the 
police service fee will have a different due date. City Manager West responded yes.  
 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard read Ordinance No. 678 in its entirety then by title 
only.  
  

4. City Manager Contract Correction - Resolution 18-19-014 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall the City Council adopt Resolution 18-19-014 
amending the City Manager's contract to correct a scrivener's error.” 
 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved that the City Council adopt Resolution 18-19-14. 
Councilor Burr seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, 
Wooden, McKnight, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor. 
  

5. Willamina Farmer's Market 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 

57



3 
 

May 14, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “should the City Council approve the closure of B 
Street from Main Street to 1st Street on Sundays for the Willamina Farmers Market.” 
 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to approve the closure of B Street to 1st Street. The 
use of the City's parking lot, and the use of the City road blocking signage for the use of 
the Farmers Market on the days and times allowed in the City staff report. Councilor 
Wooden seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, Wooden, 
McKnight, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor. 
 
Discussion: Councilor Baller asked if there were any new vendors at the market this year. 
David Morey responded there are two new vendors: One selling birdhouses and the other 
selling rock gardens.  
  

6. Library Policies - Resolution No. 18-19-015 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “should the City Council adopt Resolution 18-19-015 
approving the policies brought forth by the Library Board.” 
 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion.  
 
Councilor Johnson moved that the City Council adopt Resolution 18-19-015. Councilor 
McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, Burr, Wooden, 
McKnight, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor. 
 
Library Manager Frost explained that the policies presented to Council were in-part due 
to the State Library Division recommendation after that Division had gone  through 
litigation regarding policies. Manager Frost said the packet included four main policies 
and that there would be others added in the Fall. Manager Frost said that the policies 
presented are to act as the minimum standards to be a member of CCRLS. Manager Frost 
explained that policy No. 1 addresses the childrens code of conduct, which gives the 
Library staff a written policy  to refer to during a conversation with parents.  
  

7. Public Hearing on The Fourth Supplemental Budget 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg closed the Regular session at 6:25pm 
Mayor Skyberg opened the Public Hearing and read from a script.  
 
Mayor Skyberg asked for general testimony. There was none.  
 
Mayor Skyberg asked for comments from City Council. There was none. 
 
Mayor Skyberg closed the Public Hearing.  
 
Mayor Skyberg opened the Regular Session.  
 

58



4 
 

May 14, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “should the Council approve Resolution 18-19-016 
adopting a Fourth Supplemental Budget and reallocation for the Fiscal Year 2018-2019.” 
 
MOTION:  Councilor Wooden moved to approve Resolution 18-19-016 adopting a 
supplemental budget and allowing reallocations within Funds to the adopted budget.  
Councilor Johnson seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Burr, Baller, 
Mcknight, Wooden, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 
Discussion: City Manager West commented that this is a 4th and final supplemental 
budget for this fiscal year. She shared a summary of the Supplemental Budget.  City 
Manager West said there were minor scriveners errors that needed to be cleaned up.   In 
addition, there was additional tech support required for new software programs. Also, 
employee training ran more than expected. The City Library jumped ahead on doing 
repairs this year, that were planned for next year. Due to failing infrastructure, the City 
had to reallocate funds in the Water Fund for necessary repairs.  
  

8. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg reported that she along with Council President Baller and Mary Jane 
Hollinger attended a meeting in Sheridan at the Monroe Center which was hosted by the 
West Valley Visioning Group. This group is made up of community members who 
collected data regarding what the community would like in the future.  
  

9. Council Liaison Reports 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for reports.  
 
Cemetery Committee Liaison - Councilor Baller reported there was no meeting. 
Councilor Baller suggested that everyone visit the Cemetery Savers website to see what 
spectacular work they do with cemetery clean up. The Cemetery Savers will be working 
on the Willamina Cemetery along with Boy Scouts in August 2019.  
 
 
Chamber Liaison - Councilor Wooden reported on the following event dates.  
June 22, 2019 City Wide Clean Up 
July 4th, 2019 Celebration with music and fireworks  
July 19 & 20, 2019 City Wide Garage Sale 
 
Councilor Wooden added that the poles for the flower baskets are down getting painted. 
 
Also, Councilor Wooden commented that the Chamber voted to give a donation to Juan 
from Slow Train. Juan had been hospitalized. 
 
Library Liaison - Councilor Lawson reported the work on Sarah’s office continues and is 
progressing.  
 
YCOM Liaison - Councilor Baller commented that she wanted to thank Deputy City 

59



5 
 

May 14, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

Recorder Debbie Bernard for her assistance in preparing the annual 911-budget update. 
Councilor Baller added the YCOM Budget proposed a 3% increase for 2019-2020. 
Also,   
YCOM processed 139,248 telephone calls in 2018 of those 29,272 were 911 calls. 
YCOM continues to exceed the State and National Standards of answering 90% of all 
911 calls within 10 seconds.  
  
Yamhill County Transit - Councilor Johnson 
Councilor Johnson reported that the Transit system is going fine and that ridership is up. 
In addition, patrons are very pleased with their connections. Councilor Johnson added 
that there would be a new Board appointed in June 2019 and they will take office in July 
2019. He said he has submitted an application to continue to serve on the Board.  
  

10. City Managers Report 
Mayor Ila Skyberg  
City Manager West reported that in between budget duties, Councilor Wooden had 
contacted her regarding a 1941 fire engine that was going to be surplused by the West 
Valley Fire District. They attended the Fire Board meeting, and the Board decided to 
donate the 1941 fire engine to one of two possible recipients.  The Willamina  Museum 
being one of the possible recipients. 
 
Also, the Burn to Learn to burn date is May 26th, and the property has been remediated.  

  
IV. Consideration of New Business 

  
1. Meeting Reminder 

City Manager Kenna West 
City Manager West reported that the City Council Work Session is on Monday, May 20, 
2019 at City Hall on Transportation. Jenna Burman from ODOT will be the presenter.  
 

2. Adjourn 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion to adjourn.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to adjourn. Councilor McKnight seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors Burr, Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and 
Lawson all in favor.  
  

V. Agenda and Time of Next Meeting 
  

The next meeting will be held at 6:00 PM on June 4, 2019 at:  
West Valley Fire District 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
The agenda for the next meeting is as follows: 
Adopt the 2019-2020 City of Willamina Budget 

60



6 
 

May 14, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:45 PM by Mayor Ila Skyberg. 
  
Minutes submitted by Deputy City Recorder, Debbie Bernard ____________________________ 
 
Minutes approved by Mayor Ila Skyberg_____________________________________________ 

61



City of Willamina 
Staff Report  
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 4, 2019 
 

TO:    MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:   DEBBIE BERNARD, DEPUTY CITY RECORDER 

SUBJECT: USE OF TINA MILLER PARK FOR THE WILLAMINA 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 30-44-63J SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM  

 ISSUE  

Shall the Council approve the use of the Tina Miller Park for the Willamina School District  30-
44-63J  Summer Food Program? 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the approval of the use of the Tina Miller Park for the Summer Food 
Program. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

Annually, Council is presented with a request from the Willamina School District 30-44-63J  
Summer Food Program to include the Tina Miller Park as a feeding site.  The summer meal 
program provides healthy meals to children ages 1 to 18 free of charge. The meals provided to 
children during their summer vacation meet the USDA’s nutrition standards.  
 
The summer lunch program runs from June 17 to August 9, 2019, Monday through Friday from 
12:00 to 12:30, excluding July 4 & 5, 2019. The Willamina School District has provided lunches 
to children for the past 22 years through this program. The request is to use the park on those 
dates and times in addition to providing an empty trash can and trash removal.  
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 

 
1. Annually the Council is presented with a request from the Willamina School District to 

allow the Tina Miller Park to be used for the summer meal program.   
   

2. The summer meal program runs from June 17 thru August 9, 2019 Monday through Friday 
12:00 to 1230, excluding July 4 & 5, 2019.  
 

3. The program serves meals that are nutritional and meet the USDA’s nutrition standards.   

DebbieBernard 
________________________________________  

            Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder   

 
 

62



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For the City Council Meeting of June 4, 2019 
 
Proposed Motion: I move to approve the use of the Tina Miller Park for the Summer Lunch 
Program.  
 
Attachments: 
Letter from Willamina School District 30-44-63J 
      

 

 

 

63



WILLAMINA SCHOOL DISTRICT 30-44-63J 
1100 NE Oaken Hills Dr./P.O. Box 1000, Willamina, Oregon 97396 

Phone:  (503) 876-4525 / Fax:  (503) 876-3610 
Carrie Zimbrick, Superintendent 
Email:  carrie.zimbrick@willamina.k12.or.us 

 

 
Willamina Elementary School – 1100 Oaken Hills Dr., Willamina, OR 97396 – Phone: (503) 876-2374 / Cera Norwood, Principal 

Willamina Middle School - 1100 Oaken Hills Dr., Willamina, OR 97396 – Phone: (503) 876-2545 / Tim France, Principal 
Willamina High School – 1100 Oaken Hills Dr., Willamina, OR 97396 – Phone: (503) 876-2545 / Tim France, Principal 

 
May 13, 2019 
 
Willamina City Hall 
Willamina City Council 
411 N.E. C Street 
Willamina, OR 97396 
 
Dear City Council, 
 
Children need good food all year long, even when they’re not in school. That is why for the past twenty-two 
years, Willamina School District has been bringing nutritious meals during the summer time to the children of 
Willamina. The summer meal program provides healthy meals to children ages 1 to 18 free of charge. All 
meals meet USDA’s nutrition standards so that children get the nutrition they need to learn, play and grow 
during vacation when they do not eat at school. 
 
Again this year, we would like to include Tina Miller Park in our list of feeding sites.  
 
Tina Miller Park has been a successful feeding site for this program in the past, because it has a covered area 
in case the Oregon rain decides to make a visit. It is a safe, enclosed area and is downtown so that more 
children have access. 
 
From June 17 to August 9, The Willamina School District would provide a no-charge sack lunch to any child 
age one to eighteen Monday through Friday from 12:00 to 12:30 excluding July 4 & 5.  
 
There are a few simple rules that would be posted such as, children must take a full meal, they must be eaten 
by the child that takes the meal and food cannot be taken out of the park. The only supervision will be when 
the meals are being handed out until the final clean up is completed around 12:30. 
 
All that we request from the city is the use of a portion of the park during the times above, an empty trash can 
and trash removal. The school district will supply trash bags for the can if you desire. 
 
Please contact me at (503)876-2702 if you have any questions. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Lynne Shore 
Nutrition Services Director 
Willamina School District 
 
 

64



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



 
 

CITY OF WILLAMINA 
STAFF REPORT 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 4, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: DEBBIE BERNARD DEPUTY CITY RECORDER  
 
SUBJECT: CITY OF WILLAMINA MASTER FEE SCHEDULE  
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution 18-19-023 approving a City Master Fee Schedule?  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Resolution 18-19-023 approving a City Master Schedule. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
Historically, the City of Willamina has not had one cohesive Master Fee Schedule, which has 
been a hardship on our citizen’s wishing to move forward with property projects as well as 
developers hoping to build homes and businesses in our beautiful city. 
 
In order to alleviate this hardship, staff has prepared a proposed Master Fee Schedule which is 
attached to Resolution 18-19-023 as Attachment A.  In order to prepare this Master Fee 
Schedule, staff reviewed all relevant fees, and researched the fees being charged by other 
comparable jurisdictions. Fees were created and/or adjusted based upon the actual costs 
associated with those fees, and the fees charged for similar services by other jurisdictions. 
 
In addition, Resolution 18-19-023 provides the City Manager with the authority to revise the fees 
as needed, except for those that require City Council approval, such as water fees, sewer fees, 
etc. 
 

 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 

1. Historically, the City has not had a Master Fee Schedule for use by its citizens, 
developers, and staff.  This has been a hardship on all three groups. 
 

2. In order to rectify this hardship, staff has prepared the attached Master Fee Schedule 
for use by our community and visitor’s to our community. 

 
Proposed Motion: I move that the Council adopt Resolution 18-19-023 approving the City of 
Willamina Master Fee Schedule as attached thereto. 
 
       Debbie Bernard 

      ________________________________________ 
      Deputy City Recorder, Debbie Bernard 
 

78



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of June 4, 2019 
Page 2  
 
Attachments:   
 City of Willamina Master Fee Schedule Resolution 18-19-023 

Attachment A to Resolution 18-19-023 
   

79



An Equal Opportunity Employer 
411 N.E. “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783   Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

www.willaminaoregon.gov 

 
 Mayor Ila Skyberg 

 
Council Members: 

 
Rita Baller, Council President 
Bob Burr 
Craig Johnson 
Roberta Lawson 
Theresa McKnight 
April Wooden 
 

 
 
City Management: 
 
City Manager:  Kenna L. West 
Finance Manager:  Scott Clark 
Public Works Director:  Jeff Brown 
Library Manager:  Sarah Frost 
 

 
BEFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLAMINA SITTING FOR THE 

TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 18-19-23  
 
A Resolution of the Willamina City Council establishing a Master Fee Schedule as found in Exhibit A, 
which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to set fees for materials and services provided by the 
City of Willamina; and 
 
WHEREAS, City administration has identified the need to establish a Master Fee Schedule for the City 
of Willamina; and 
  
WHEREAS, these fees are an essential part of the resources for the operation of the City of Willamina;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILLAMINA THAT 

 
Section 1. The fees found on the attached Exhibit A are established and effective on June 4, 

2019. All other fees, which were previously established, but are not found on the attached Exhibit A, if 
any, shall remain in effect;  

Section 2. The City Council hereby grants the authority to the City Manager to update, revise, or 
amend the Master Fee Schedule at her discretion, except for those fees found within “Municipal Court”, 
“Public Safety Fee”, SDC-System Development Charges”, “Utility Billing”, and “Violations of the 
Municipal Code”.  

Section 3. This resolution supersedes any previously adopted fee resolution, unless those fees 
are the subject of Section 1 above, and clerical errors and omissions excepted; and 

Section 4. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.  

PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willamina on this 4th day of June, 
2019. 

 
       
Ila Skyberg, Mayor      

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder  

 

80

http://www.willaminaoregon.gov/


 
 
CITY OF WILLAMNA MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Master Fee Schedule Exhibit A 6/4/2018  1 

 

  

 
      DRAFT 

 
  

EXHIBIT A 
 

City of Willamina 
 
 
 

Master  
Fee 

Schedule 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

81



 
 
CITY OF WILLAMNA MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Master Fee Schedule Exhibit A 6/4/2018  2 

 
 
 
 

Description 

 
 
 
 

Fee 

Administration-General  
           
  Building Compliance Application  100.00 

  Business License Annual Renewal   75.00 
  Business License Initial Application          100.00 
  Business License Past Due  $     10.00 per 

month up to $   
50.00 

  Business License Transfer or Assign  $     50.00 
  Color Copy of Zone Map $       6.00 per 

map 
  Copies-Black/White 11 by 17 $       1.00 per 

page 
  Copies-Black/White 8 ½ by 11 $         .75 per 

page 
  Copies-Black/White 8 ½ by 14 $         .100 per 

page 
  Copies-Color              11 by 17 $       1.50 per 

page 
  Copies-Color              8 ½ by 14 $       1.25 per 

page 
  Copies-Color             8 ½ by 11 $         1.00 per 

page 
  Electronic Documents Sent by Email/FTP $15.00 
  Faxes - $       1.50 per 

page  
  General Records Search (City Staff) $     25.00 
  Liquor License Application New $   100.00 
  Liquor License Change or Ownership $     75.00 
  Liquor License Renewal  $     35.00 
  Liquor License Special Event $     35.00 
  Maps and Other Nonstandard Size Docs $     25.00 
  Printed copy of any City Code $     25.00 
  Scanned Copies to PDF to 11x17         $         1.25 

per page 
  Scanned Large Copies to PDF    $     Actual Cost 
Public Record Request   
  

82



 
 
CITY OF WILLAMNA MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Master Fee Schedule Exhibit A 6/4/2018  3 

  Public Records Request Digital File  $15.00 per 
CD/DVD or 

Copies 

 

  Public Records Request ref. ORS 192.440 
*Plus the actual hourly cost for staff research fee, and cost of 
copies 

         

 

              $ 50.00* 

   Research Fee per hour (City Staff) Level 2 $40.00  
per hour 

   Public Records Review (City Attorney) Level 3 $215.00  
per hour 

Municipal Court  
  Fail to Appear for Trial $      35.00 
  Returned Check  $      35.00   
  State Presumptive Class A – ORS 153.019 $     440.00  
  State Presumptive Class B –ORS 153.019 $     265.00  
  State Presumptive Class C-ORS 153.019 $     165.00  
  State Presumptive Class D –ORS 153.019 $      115.00  
  Traffic School Class A $     NA 
  Traffic School Class B $     150.00 
  Traffic School Class C $     100.00 
  Traffic School Class D $       75.00 
  Trial               $     35.00 
  Court Administrative Fee                $   25.00 
Permits  
Sign Permit-Commercial/Industrial Zones- 
Staff Review 

$    100.00 

Sign Permit-Non Commercial/Industrial Zones-Staff Review $    100.00 
Planning  
All applications shall be assessed a 10% administration fee based 
on the application costs.  

  
10% added  

Annexations/Zone Change $ 2,500.00              
Appeals to Council 50% of the Application Fee of action appealed $ 2,500.00              
Code Interpretation $    100.00       
Compréhensive Plan Amendent/Zone Change $ 2,500.00              
Conditional Use Permit $    600.00 
Construction Application Fee -5% of actual Construction Cost  

83



 
 
CITY OF WILLAMNA MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Master Fee Schedule Exhibit A 6/4/2018  4 

 Lot Line Adjustment $350.00 
 Multiple Applications- Most expensive Application fee in full plus ½  
of application fee for other applications 

 

Home Occupations-Staff Review- $ 100.00  
 Non-Conforming Use Determination-Planning Commission Review  $   600.00 
 Non-Conforming Use Determination-Staff Review  $   100.00 
 Partition $ 1,000.00 
 Plan Review Fee (pre-platted subdivision  and infill lots) $2,500.00 
 Planned Unit Development (PUD) $ 1,800.00 
 Pre-Application Conference $ 450.00 
 Request for Land Use Approval Extension  $ 600.00 
 Similar Use Determination $  600.00 
 Site Plan Review  $  600.00 
 Subdivision –Final Plan $ 2500.00 
 Subdivision-Preliminary Plat -$750 plus $450.00 per lot up to the 
maximum of 

$ 2500.00 

Temporary Mobile Home Placement $     50.00 
Variance Application $   600.00 
Lien Search   
  Per Property Address  $     25.00  
Public Safety Fee  
Ordinance 678 – Public Safety Fee Per Household   $       9.72   
SDC System Development Charges  
  Water System Development Charge – Per Service $  1848 
  Sewer System Development Charge – Per Service $   2500 
  Streets SDC – Per Service $  3,000 
  Water Connection Fee– Per Service $     550 
  Sewer Connection Fee– Per Service $     150 
  Double Check Valve Includes Box– Per Service   $  200 
Total SDCs – w/connection fees $   8,248 
Utility Billing  

 
Meter Size Base Rate by 

Size 
5/8 $34.74 
¾ $34.74 

84



 
 
CITY OF WILLAMNA MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Master Fee Schedule Exhibit A 6/4/2018  5 

Rate  Description  Service Base Amount 

per 
100 
cubic 
ft. 15% surcharge 

105 Apt > 4 Units (water - Meter) $139.04  $4.17  $20.86 
109 Business (water - Meter) $69.50  $4.17  $10.43 

114 
Willamina 
Lumber (water - Meter) $3,147.91  $1.25  $472.19 

115 Meter - 2 inch (water - Meter) $138.99  $4.17  $20.85 

123 
Single Family 
(W1) (water - Meter) $34.74  $4.17  $5.21 

300 Single Family (S1) (Sewer) $60.86    $9.13 

304 
Car Wash -Sewer 
(SCW) (Sewer) $115.83    $17.37 

305 Grocery Store (SF) (Sewer) $147.53    $22.13 

309 
Vacation Rate 
(SH) (Sewer) $19.09    $2.86 

310 
Laundry Sewer 
(SL) (Sewer) $303.92    $45.59 

312 
Willamina 
Lumber (SLW) (Sewer) $735.49    $100.32 

313 
House/Cabins 
(SPS) (Sewer) $175.28    $26.29 

315 
Café/restaurant 
(ST1) (Sewer) $145.86    $21.88 

317 
Café/restaurant 
(ST3) (Sewer) $194.52    $29.18 

1 $55.59 
1 1/2eew1dduuuuddd $69.49  
2   $126.40 
6 $694.93 
8 $2084.78 
10 $2779.71 
12 $3891.60 
F-3/4 $34.74 
1-2 $786.98 
1-3/4 $62.9 
1-8 $31.47 
  
Utility Billing continued  

85



 
 
CITY OF WILLAMNA MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Master Fee Schedule Exhibit A 6/4/2018  6 

 

318 
Café/restaurant 
(ST4) (Sewer) $92.42    $13.86 

321 
Willamina 
Lumber New (Sewer)   $1.25  $3.00 

322 High School New (water - Meter) $694.93  4.17  

901 
Exterritorial 
Water Surcharge  

(Extraterritorial 
Water Service)   15%  

1001 
Exterritorial 
Sewer Surcharge  

(Extraterritorial 
Sewer Service)   15%  

1201 Utility Rate (Utility Rate) $3.00     
1300 NSF Check Fee (NSF Check Fee) $35.00     
1901 Late Fee (Penalty) $5.00     

 

The rate codes below have a base rate of $34.74 and commodity rate of $4.17 and extraterritorial  
charge of 15% not listed above. 
*103 Vacation Rate, 106 Duplex, 107 3-Plex, 108 4-Plex or Multi Units, 110 Rays Grocery,111 Car Wash,  112 Group Home, 113 
Laundry, 116 House Cabin, 117 3/4"Base Rate, 118 Café Restaurant, 119 Business -1, 120 Café Restaurant, 121 Café Restaurant 
(T4), 122 Café Restaurant (T6)  
The rate codes below have a base rate of $60.86 and an extraterritorial charge of 15% not listed above.  
*301 Apartment/Duplex (SA), 302 Business -Sewer (SB), 303 Church - Sewer (SC), 308 Group Home (SGH), 314 Senior Rate (SS), 320 
ST 6 

86



 
 
CITY OF WILLAMNA MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Master Fee Schedule Exhibit A 6/4/2018  7 

 

VIOLATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE - CODE ENFORCEMENT Penalty 
 
Violation of the City of Willamina Municipal Code may result in the 
following fees or penalties. Each day that a violation exist is a 
separate offense. Title lX General Offenses (this list does not 
include all offenses) 
 

  

Ordinance 466 – General Regulations - Chapter 90 Animals – 
§90.03 Dog required to be on a leash - §90.99 Penalty 

 
$250.00  

   
Ordinance 670 – General Regulations – Amending Title lX – 
Chapter 91 Abandoned Vehicles  

 
$50.00 

   
Amended Ordinance 534 – Chapter 93: Nuisances – §93.07 
Nuisances Affecting the Public Safety (B) (1) Unnecessary noise.  

 
$300.00 

    
Ordinance No. 673 – Title Xlll, Chapter 132 - Offenses Against 
Public Peace –  §132.09 Smoking in Public Places 

 
$100.00 

   
Ordinance 676 – lX, Chapter 90 Animals – Picking up after your 
dog 

$300.00 

 

87



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 4, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: KENNA WEST, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE CITY’S APPLICATION FOR A 2019 
  TRANSPORTATION AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT GRANT 
  
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall City Council adopt Resolution No. 18-19-024 approving and supporting the City of 
Willamina’s application for a 2019 Transportation and Growth Management Grant from the 
Oregon Department of Transportation? 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 18-19-024 approving and supporting the City of Willamina’s 
application for a 2019 Transportation and Growth Management Grant from the Oregon 
Department of Transportation. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Willamina’s Transportation System Plan was last updated in 1997.  Since that 
time, our beautiful city has seen many changes affecting the transportation patterns of its 
citizens including the school moving from one side of town to the other, an increase in 
bicycling enthusiasts in our City, new housing developments, business changes in the 
downtown core which lend themselves to more walking than driving, and the community’s 
desire for safer walking, biking, and driving conditions on our streets.  Our outdated 
Transportation System Plan takes into account none of the above changes to our beautiful 
city. 
 
The expected cost of an updated Transportation System Plan (TSP) is approximately 
$125,200.  The City does not have funds available to complete the needed update of our 
TSP.  The Oregon Department of Transportation has in place a Transportation and Growth 
Management Grant (TGM) which can be used to update TSP’s, such as the City of 
Willamina’s, to more accurately reflect the City’s existing and future transportation needs.  
The TGM has a required 12% match which is approximately $15,024.  The City proposes 
to meet that match requirement, mainly with in-kind staff resources, but also with a small 
coordinated cash match. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 

1. The City’s Transportation System Plan is badly outdated, having been last 
updated in 1997. 
 

88



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of June 4, 2019 
Page 2 
 

2. The Oregon Department of Transportation has a Transportation and Growth 
Management Grant which can be used to update outdated Transportation 
System Plans. 

 
3. The City is applying for a 2019 Transportation and Growth Management Grant in 

the sum of approximately $125,200.  The required match of 12% is 
approximately $15,024. The City will meet that match requirement through in-
kind staff resources and/or coordinated cash match. 

 
4. The attached Resolution No. 18-19-024, if adopted, will be submitted as a part of 

the Transportation and Growth Management Grant application to confirm the 
City of Willamina City Council’s support of that grant application. 

 
Proposed Motion:  I move to adopt Resolution No. 18-19-024 supporting the City’s 

application for a 2019 TGM Grant. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Kenna L. West, City Manager 
 
Attachment A:  Resolution No. 18-19-024 

89



 

 
 
 Mayor Ila Skyberg 

 
Council Members: 

 
Rita Baller, Council President 
Bob Burr 
Craig Johnson 
Roberta Lawson 
Theresa McKnight 
April Wooden 
 

 
 
City Management: 
 
City Manager:  Kenna L. West 
Finance Manager:  Scott Clark 
Public Works Director:  Jeff Brown 
Library Manager:  Sarah Frost 
 

 
 

BEFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLAMINA 
SITTING FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS 

 
 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 18-19-024 
 
A Resolution approving and supporting the City of Willamina’s application for a 2019 Transportation and 
Growth Management Grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation to update the City’s 
Transportation System Plan 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Willamina is applying for a 2019 Transportation and Growth Management 
(TGM) Grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation to update the City’s Transportation System 
Plan (TSP); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the TGM Grant will allow the City of Willamina to amend the current 1997 TSP to 
more accurately reflect the City’s existing and future transportation needs, to meets the needs of all users, to 
identify and prioritize projects that more closely reflect the goals and needs of the community, and to 
establish up-to-date project costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City of Willamina City Council to ensure a sustainable and 
economically viable transportation system through responsible long-range transportation system planning; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Willamina has the capacity to meet the required twelve percent (12%) 
project match through the use of coordinated cash and/or in-kind staff resources;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILLAMINA, OREGON, that the City Council does hereby approve and support the City’s application 
for a 2019 Transportation and Growth Management Grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation 
to update the City of Willamina Transportation System Plan. 

 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Willamina City Council this 4th day of June, 2019. 
 
 
      ___________________________________________ 
      Ila Skyberg, Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      ___________________________________________ 
      Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder 

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

97



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 4, 2019 
 

TO:    MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:   DEBBIE BERNARD, DEPUTY CITY RECORDER 

SUBJECT: CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUE 
RESOLUTION 18-19-017 

ISSUE  

Shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-017 declaring the City’s election to receive 
State Revenue Funds? 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that Council hold a public hearing in accordance with ORS 221.770 
and adopt Resolution 18-19-017. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

Annually, the State of Oregon provides monies to each City in Oregon in accordance 
with ORS 221.770.  This revenue share is based on population and is their share of 
taxes received from the sale of liquor. A public hearing was held in accordance with that 
Statute to allow citizens input on possible distributions of the funds.  
 
The City’s State Revenue Share is estimated for 2019/2020 at approximately $40,000. 
This money has been included as a revenue source in the General Fund and used with 
other revenue sources to balance the General Fund. It is not earmarked for any specific 
item.  

FACTS AND FINDINGS 

1. The City of Willamina, in accordance with ORS 221.770 holds a hearing for 
public comment in regarding to the allocation of State Revenue Share funds, 
on an annual basis. 

 
2. The City of Willamina, also in accordance with ORS 221.770 elects to receive 

their share of the State Revenue Share funds. 
 
3. Resolution 18-19-017 is a formal declaration of the City’s wish to share in the 

State Revenue Share Funds and a confirmation that the City complied with 
ORS 221.770 in every way. 

 
Proposed Motion: I move to approve Resolution 18-19-017.  

 
              Debbie Bernard  

 ___________________________________  

            Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder   

Attachments: Resolution No. 18-19-017 

98



An Equal Opportunity Employer 
411 N.E. “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783   Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

www.willaminaoregon.gov 

 
 
 Mayor Ila Skyberg 

 
Council Members: 

 
Rita Baller, Council President 
Bob Burr 
Craig Johnson 
Roberta Lawson 
Theresa McKnight 
April Wooden 
 

 
 
City Management: 
 
City Manager:  Kenna L. West 
Accounting Manager:  Scott Clark 
Public Works Director:  Jeff Brown 
Library Manager:  Sarah Frost 
 

 
 

 
BEFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLAMINA 

SITTING FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS 
 

Resolution 18-19-017  
 
A Resolution declaring the City’s election to receive State Revenues 
 
Whereas, Section 1, pursuant to ORS 221.770, the City hereby elects to receive State 
Revenues for fiscal year 2019-2020; and 

 
Whereas, Section 2, this resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILLAMINA that the City elects to receive State Revenues for fiscal year 2019-2020 and that 
this resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willamina this 4th day of June 
2019. 

 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Ila Skyberg, Mayor 
 
        
       ATTEST: 
       _________________________________ 
       Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder  
  
 
            I certify that a public hearing was held before the Budget Committee on May 21, 
2019, and a public hearing before the City Council was held on June 4, 2019, allowing 
citizens to comment on the use of State Revenue Sharing.   

______________________________ 
Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder 

  
 
 

99

http://www.willaminaoregon.gov/


City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 4, 2019 
 

TO:    MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:   DEBBIE BERNARD, DEPUTY CITY RECORDER 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 18-19-018 CERTIFYING THE CITY PROVIDES 
FOUR OR MORE SERVICES  

ISSUE  

Shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-018, declaring that the City of Willamina 
provides four or more services in accordance with ORS 221.760.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that Council approve Resolution 18-19-018 in accordance with ORS 
221.760.  

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

Annually, the State of Oregon requests the City of Willamina declare by resolution that 
the City provides four or more services to their citizens in accordance with ORS 
221.760. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 

1. Annually the City of Willamina City Council declares their eligibility to receive 
state funds, which is a prerequisite for cities in counties over 100,000 population 
to receive revenues from cigarette, gas, and liquor taxes. 
 

2. Resolution 18-19-018 certifies that the City of Willamina provides police 
protection, street construction, maintenance and lighting, planning and zoning, 
and subdivision control, and water and sewer utility services.  
 

Proposed Motion: I move to approve Resolution 18-19-018 declaring the City provides 
four or more services and meets the eligibility to receive state funds.  

 DebbieBernard 
________________________________________  

            Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder   

Attachments: Resolution 18-19-018  

100



An Equal Opportunity Employer 
411 N.E. “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783   Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

www.willaminaoregon.gov 

 
 
 Mayor Ila Skyberg 

 
Council Members: 

 
Rita Baller, Council President 
Bob Burr 
Craig Johnson 
Roberta Lawson 
Theresa McKnight 
April Wooden 
 

 
 
City Management: 
 
City Manager:  Kenna L. West 
Accounting Manager:  Scott Clark 
Public Works Director:  Jeff Brown 
Library Manager:  Sarah Frost 
 

BEFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLAMINA 
SITTING FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS 

Resolution 18-19-018  
 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 221.760 provides as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The officer responsible for disbursing funds to cities under ORS 323.455, 366.785 TO 366.820 
AND 471.805 shall, in the case of a city located within a county having more than 100,000 inhabitants according 
to the most recent federal decennial census, disburse such funds only if the city provides four or more of the 
following services: 
 

(1) Police protection 
(2) Fire Protection 
(3) Street construction, maintenance, and lighting  
(4) Sanity sewer 
(5) Storm sewers 
(6) Planning, zoning, and subdivision control 
(7) One or more utility services 

 
and 
 
WHEREAS, city officials recognize the desirability of assisting the state officer responsible for determining the 
eligibility of cities to receive such funds in accordance with ORS.221.760, now, therefore,  
 
Be it resolved, that the City of Willamina hereby certifies that it provides at least the following four municipal 
services enumerated in Section 1, ORS 221.760: 
 

(1) Police protection 
(2) Street Construction, maintenance, and lighting 
(3) Planning, zoning, and subdivision control 
(4) Water and Sewer Utility Services 

 
Approved by the City of Willamina this 4th day of June, 2019.  

               
       _________________________________ 
       Ila Skyberg, Mayor 

         
       ATTEST: 
       _________________________________ 
       Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder  
  
 
        

101

http://www.willaminaoregon.gov/


City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 4, 2019 

 

TO:   MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  DEBBIE BERNARD, DEPUTY CITY RECORDER 

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 CITY OF WILLAMINA APPROVED BUDGET – 
RESOLUTION 18-19-019 

ISSUE  

Shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-019,  adopting the 2019/2020 Budget, as 
amended, making appropriations and imposing and categorizing taxes in accordance 
with ORS 294.456? 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that Council hold a public hearing in accordance with ORS 294.456 
and adopt Resolution 18-19-019. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

On May 21, 2019 the Willamina City Council Budget Committee unanimously voted to 
approve the 2019-2020 proposed City of Willamina Budget. After a public hearing is 
held to allow public comment, the City Council may elect to adopt the annual Budget by 
Resolution. 

FACTS AND FINDINGS 

1. On May 21, 2019 the Budget Committee unanimously voted to approve the 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 City of Willamina proposed budget.  
 

2. The City of Willamina City Council, after holding a public hearing and 
consideration of matters discussed, may elect to adopt by resolution the City’s 
annual budget, which makes the appropriations, to determine, make and 
declare the ad valorem property tax amount or rate certified to the assessor.  

 
3. A Notice of Public hearing with the financial summary and budget summary 

was published in the News-Register on June 1, 2019. 

Proposed Motion:  I move to approve Resolution 18-19-019, adopting the 2019/2020 
Budget, making appropriations, imposing, categorizing taxes in accordance with ORS 
294.456, and imposing the tax rate at $4.2039 per $1,000.  

        Debbie Bernard 

_____________________________________ 

            Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder   

Attachments: 18-19-019 

102



An Equal Opportunity Employer 
411 N.E. “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783   Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

www.willaminaoregon.gov 

 
 
 Mayor Ila Skyberg 

 
Council Members: 

 
Rita Baller, Council President 
Bob Burr 
Craig Johnson 
Roberta Lawson 
Theresa McKnight 
April Wooden 
 
 

 
 
City Management: 
 
City Manager:  Kenna L. West 
Accounting Manager:  Scott Clark 
Public Works Director:  Jeff Brown 
Library Manager:  Sarah Frost 
 

 
 

BEFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLAMINA 
SITTING FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS 

Resolution 18-19-019 
 
A resolution adopting the FY 2019/2020 Budget, as amended, making appropriations and imposing and 
categorizing taxes 

 
ADOPTING THE BUDGET 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Willamina, Oregon, hereby adopts the 

budget for fiscal year 2019/2020 in the sum of $4,112,449.    
        
MAKING APPROPRIATIONS 
  
BE IT RESOLVED that the amounts for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 and for the purposes 

shown below are hereby appropriated: 
 
    
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  
Resolution 18-19-019   

 
City of Willamina   

Budget 2019-2020   

Appropriation                      FY 20 Proposed 

10 General (1,278,399) 
2 Administration (297,496) 
3 City Services (331,591) 
4 Public Safety (374,600) 
6 Capital Outlay (5,000) 
9 Contingency (266,712) 
9 Reserves (3,000) 

     
CONTINUED ON PAGE 2 

103

http://www.willaminaoregon.gov/


2 
 

Resolution No. 18-19-019   
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTINUED ON PAGE 3 
 
 
 
 

IMPOSING THE TAX 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Willamina hereby imposes the taxes 
provided for in the adopted budget at the permanent rate of 4.2039 per $1,000 of assessed value for 

City of Willamina 
Budget 2019-2020 

 
Appropriation                      FY 20 Proposed 

  

20 Streets (329,044) 
2 Street Operations (136,019) 
6 Capital Outlay (11,500) 
7 Grant (120,000) 
8 Transfer Out (22,890) 
9 Contingency (38,635) 
21 Street SDC (174,000) 
6 Capital Outlay (10,000) 
9 Contingency (164,000) 
30 Water (1,366,683) 
2 Water Operations (513,592) 
6 Capital Outlay (515,100) 
7 Debt Service (60,994) 
8 Transfer Out (150,189) 
9 Contingency (126,808) 
31 Water SDC (82,549) 
6 Capital Outlay (5,000) 
8 Transfer Out (13,203) 
9 Contingency (64,346) 
40 Wastewater (856,802) 
2 Wastewater Operation (444,148) 
6 Capital Outlay (41,000) 
7 Debt Service (175,502) 
8 Transfer Out (81,596) 
9 Contingency (114,556) 
41 Wastewater SDC (34,972) 
6 Capital Outlay (5,000) 
8 Transfer Out (24,570) 
9 Contingency (5,402) 

Grand Total                                                      (4,122,449) 

 

104



3 
 

Resolution No. 18-19-019   
 

operation, estimated to be $410,000 and that these taxes are hereby imposed and categorized for the 
tax year 2019-2020 upon the assessed value of all taxable property.  

 
CATEGORIZING THE TAX 

 
General Government Limitation      Excluded from Limitation 

 
Permanent Tax Rate  4.2039/$1,000  0  
 
Category Total            4.2039/$1,000  0 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willamina this 4th day of June 

2019. 
 

 
               
       _________________________________ 
       Ila Skyberg, Mayor 

         
       ATTEST: 
       _________________________________ 
       Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder  
  
 
        

105



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 4, 2019 
 

TO:    MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:   DEBBIE BERNARD, CITY RECORDER 

SUBJECT: RWO WESTERN OREGON WASTE PROPOSED RATES 
RESOLUTION 18-19-020 

ISSUE  

Shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-020 approving the proposed 2.70% 
collections rate increase presented by Recology Western Oregon? 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the approval of Resolution 18-19-020 approving the rate increase 
after the public hearing on June 4, 2019, for the Recology Western Oregon Proposed 
Annual Rate Increase for FY 2019-2020. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

This proposal is an annual submission from the City’s solid waste franchisee, Recology 
Western Oregon. Attached, as a exhibit to Resolution 18-19-020, is the rate information 
provided for these rate increases. If the Resolution is approved the new rates will 
become effective July 1, 2019. The financial Report and the rate increase sheets are 
attached for your information.  
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 

1. The Summary Rate Sheet that is attached to the resolution shows the current 
and proposed rates.  The primary reason for the increase is an annual CPI-U 
cost of living increase of 2.70%. 
 

2. Section 9, subsection (c) (2) of the Franchise Agreement requires holding a 
public hearing on the proposed rates. 
 

3. Council has the authority to either approve or not approve the rate increase as 
stated in Section 9, subsection (c) (3) of the Franchise Agreement. 
 

4. The Franchise fee received from this franchisee is approximately $5,000 per 
year. 
 

Proposed Motion: I move to approve Resolution 18-19-020 approving the proposed 
Recology Western Oregon rate increase as presented.       
  

 

106



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For the City Council Meeting of June 4, 2019 
 

 

 

DebbieBernard 

__________________________________  
            Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder   

Attachments: 
     Resolution 18-19-020 

107



An Equal Opportunity Employer 
411 N.E. “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783   Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

www.willaminaoregon.gov 

 
 
 

BEFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLAMINA 
SITTING FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS 

 

  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 18-19-020 
 
A resolution approving proposed 2019/2020 rate schedule for Recology Western Oregon 
(formerly Western Oregon Waste) 
 

WHEREAS, Recology Western Oregon (hereinafter called “Recology”) is the 
franchise holder for the provision of solid waste collection services in the City of Willamina; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance #551 sets out the terms and conditions of the franchise; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 9, Rates, of that Ordinance provides a process for rate 
changes upon the request of the provider; and 
 

WHEREAS, Recology has submitted a proposed rate increase in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 9 of the Ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed rates was held on June 4, 2019, and 
due consideration has been given to all relevant factors; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF WILLAMINA that the proposed rate schedule for solid waste collection services by 
Recology Western Oregon, attached hereto as Exhibit A and by this reference made a part 
hereof, is approved and shall be effective July 1, 2019. 
 

Passed and adopted by the Willamina City Council this 4th day of June 2019. 
 
 

       
Ila Skyberg, Mayor      

ATTEST: 

       
Debbie Bernard, City Recorder  

Attachment – Exhibit A 

 Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 

Council Members: 
 

Rita Baller, Council President 
Bob Burr 
Craig Johnson 
Roberta Lawson 
Theresa McKnight 
April Wooden 
 

 
 
City Management: 
 
City Manager:  Kenna L. West 
Finance Manager:  Scott Clark 
Public Works Director:  Jeff Brown 
Library Manager:  Sarah Frost 
 

108

http://www.willaminaoregon.gov/


 

 

 
 
Ms. Kenna West 
City Manager 
City of Willamina 
P.O. Box 629 
Willamina, OR  97396 
 
May 23rd, 2019 
 
Dear Kenna: 
 
Please find attached to this letter the following items: 

1. Table showing results of the CPI-U (West B/C) for April 2019 vs. April 2018. 
2. Rate sheets showing the proposed change to collection rates.   

 
As we presented in our rate application submitted April 1st, 2019, we propose to adjust rates for most 
services by the contractual CPI adjustment of 2.70% to be effective July 1st, 2019. 
   
You will note that some rates have not changed, including the rates for medical waste services.  Also, 
debris box disposal rates were increased to reflect expected changes in the rates charged to us by 
Riverbend Landfill. 
 
I look forward to attending the council meeting on June 4th.  Please let me know if you have any 
questions or service issues you want addressed at that time. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Dave Larmouth 
Rate Analyst 
 
CC: Carl Peters, General Manager 

109



Table 4. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): Selected areas, all items index, April 2019
[1982-84=100, unless otherwise noted]

Area
Pricing

Schedule1

Percent change to Apr. 2019 from: Percent change to Mar. 2019 from:

Apr.
2018

Feb.
2019

Mar.
2019

Mar.
2018

Jan.
2019

Feb.
2019

U.S. city average. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 2.0 1.1 0.5 1.9 1.0 0.6

Region and area size2

Northeast. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.7 0.9 0.4 1.7 0.7 0.5
Northeast - Size Class A.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.8 0.8 0.3 1.8 0.8 0.4
Northeast - Size Class B/C3. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.5 1.0 0.5 1.5 0.6 0.6
New England4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 2.1 1.3 0.4 2.1 0.8 0.9
Middle Atlantic4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.5 0.7 0.4 1.5 0.7 0.4

Midwest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.5 0.9 0.3 1.7 1.3 0.6
Midwest - Size Class A.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.2 0.6 0.1 1.6 1.1 0.6
Midwest - Size Class B/C3. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.7 1.0 0.5 1.7 1.4 0.6
East North Central4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.5 0.7 0.3 1.7 1.2 0.4
West North Central4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.7 1.2 0.4 1.5 1.4 0.9

South. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.8 1.2 0.5 1.6 1.2 0.7
South - Size Class A.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 2.1 1.2 0.6 1.9 1.2 0.6
South - Size Class B/C3. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.6 1.2 0.5 1.5 1.3 0.7
South Atlantic4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 2.3 1.3 0.6 2.0 1.4 0.8
East South Central4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 0.7 0.8 0.2 1.0 1.2 0.6
West South Central4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.4 1.2 0.6 1.4 1.0 0.6

West. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 2.9 1.2 0.8 2.4 0.7 0.4
West - Size Class A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 3.0 1.3 0.8 2.6 0.7 0.5
West - Size Class B/C3.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 2.7 1.2 0.9 2.3 0.6 0.3
Mountain4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 2.2 1.4 0.7 2.1 0.6 0.6
Pacific4. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 3.1 1.2 0.8 2.6 0.7 0.4

Size classes

Size Class A5.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 2.1 1.0 0.5 2.0 0.9 0.5
Size Class B/C3. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.9 1.1 0.6 1.7 1.0 0.6

Selected local areas

Chicago-Naperville-Elgin, IL-IN-WI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 0.8 0.0 -0.1 1.5 0.8 0.1
Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim, CA. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 3.3 1.6 1.0 2.7 0.7 0.6
New York-Newark-Jersey City, NY-NJ-PA. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . M 1.6 0.6 0.3 1.6 0.5 0.3

Atlanta-Sandy Springs-Roswell, GA.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2.5 1.4
Baltimore-Columbia-Towson, MD6.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2.6 1.7
Detroit-Warren-Dearborn, MI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 1.0 0.6
Houston-The Woodlands-Sugar Land, TX.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 1.8 1.1
Miami-Fort Lauderdale-West Palm Beach, FL. . . . . . . . . . . 2 2.2 0.8
Philadelphia-Camden-Wilmington, PA-NJ-DE-MD. . . . . . . 2 1.9 1.3
Phoenix-Mesa-Scottsdale, AZ7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2.3 1.4
San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward, CA.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 4.0 1.2
Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue, WA.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2.4 0.5
St. Louis, MO-IL. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 1.0 1.0
Urban Alaska. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2.7 0.6

Boston-Cambridge-Newton, MA-NH.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 2.1 0.5
Dallas-Fort Worth-Arlington, TX.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 2.7 1.1
Denver-Aurora-Lakewood, CO.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1.4 1.3
Minneapolis-St.Paul-Bloomington, MN-WI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 2.3 1.4
Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA4.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 2.8 0.7
San Diego-Carlsbad, CA.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 2.2 0.5
Tampa-St. Petersburg-Clearwater, FL8. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1.7 1.9
Urban Hawaii. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1.8 0.5
Washington-Arlington-Alexandria, DC-VA-MD-WV6. . . . . 1 1.6 0.7

1 Foods, fuels, and several other items are priced every month in all areas. Most other goods and services are priced as indicated: M - Every month.
1 - January, March, May, July, September, and November. 2 - February, April, June, August, October, and December.

2 Regions defined as the four Census regions.

Exhibit A

110

DLarmouth
Highlight

DLarmouth
Highlight

DLarmouth
Highlight

DLarmouth
Highlight

DLarmouth
Highlight

DLarmouth
Highlight



RECOLOGY WESTERN OREGON SUMMARY RATE SHEET

WIL CITY OF WILLAMINA EFF. DATE: 7/1/2019

CURRENT NEW

CODE DESCRIPTION RATE INC % INC $$ RATE

CAN & CART SERVICES - CURBSIDE
CURBSIDE: WITHIN 4 FEET OF THE CURB OR ROAD, AND AWAY FROM ALL CARS, MAIL BOXES, OR OTHER ITEMS.

32 GALLON CAN SERVICE (CUSTOMER PROVIDES CAN) No longer available

32 GALLON CART SERVICE MONTHLY RATES

32GWC 32G CART-CURB 14.22$          2.70% 0.38$        14.60$          

32GEC 32G CART EOW-CURBSIDE 9.23$  2.70% 0.25$        9.48$  

32GMC 32G CART MONTHLY-CURB 4.97$  2.70% 0.13$        5.10$  

OC3C 32 GAL CART ON CALL CURB 4.97$  2.70% 0.13$        5.10$  

90 GALLON CART SERVICE MONTHLY RATES

90GWC 90G CART-CURB 23.69$          2.70% 0.64$        24.33$          

90GEC 90G CART EOW-CURB 15.39$          2.70% 0.42$        15.81$          

90GMC 90G CART OAM-CURB 8.29$  2.70% 0.22$        8.51$  

OC9C 90 GAL CART ON CALL CURB 8.29$  2.70% 0.22$        8.51$  

MONTHLY CART RENT (FOR ON-CALL SERVICE)

90GOC 90G CART WILL CALL-CURB 2.70$  0.00% -$          2.70$  

SPECIAL PICK-UP (FOR OFF-SCHEDULE COLLECTION) RATE PER EACH

SP32C SPEC P/U 32G CART CURBSIDE 4.97$  2.70% 0.13$        5.10$  

SP90C SPEC P/U 90G CART CURBSIDE 8.29$  2.70% 0.22$        8.51$  

Note: Recycle carts dumped as trash due to contamination may be charged the special pick-up rate.

CAN & CART SERVICES - NON-CURBSIDE (SIDEYARD)
NON-CURBSIDE: VISIBLE FROM THE STREET, OUTSIDE OF GARAGES AND FENCED AREAS.

32 GALLON CAN SERVICE (CUSTOMER PROVIDES CAN) No longer available

32 GALLON CART SERVICE MONTHLY RATES

32GWS 32G CART-SIDE 14.50$          2.70% 0.39$        14.89$          

32GES 32G CART EOW-SIDEYARD 9.43$  2.70% 0.25$        9.68$  

32GMS 32G CART MONTHLY-SIDE 5.08$  2.70% 0.14$        5.22$  

OC3S 32 GAL CART ON CALL SIDE 5.08$  2.70% 0.14$        5.22$  

90 GALLON CART SERVICE MONTHLY RATES

90GWS 90G CART-SIDE 36.34$          2.70% 0.98$        37.32$          

90GES 90G CART EOW-SIDE 23.62$          2.70% 0.64$        24.26$          

90GMS 90G CART OAM-SIDE 12.73$          2.70% 0.34$        13.07$          

OC9S 90 GAL CART ON CALL SIDE 12.73$          2.70% 0.34$        13.07$          

MONTHLY CART RENT (FOR ON-CALL SERVICE)

90GOS 90G CART WILL CALL-SIDE 2.70$  0.00% -$          2.70$  

SPECIAL PICK-UP (FOR OFF-SCHEDULE COLLECTION) RATE PER EACH

SP32S SPEC P/U 32G CART NON CURBSIDE 5.08$  2.70% 0.14$        5.22$  

SP90S SPEC P/U 90G CART NON CURBSIDE 12.73$          2.70% 0.34$        13.07$          

Note: Recycle carts dumped as trash due to contamination may be charged the special pick-up rate.

RWO-DWL Page 1 of 4 5/23/2019

Exhibit A

111



RECOLOGY WESTERN OREGON SUMMARY RATE SHEET

WIL CITY OF WILLAMINA EFF. DATE: 7/1/2019

CURRENT NEW

CODE DESCRIPTION RATE INC % INC $$ RATE

OTHER SERVICES & FEES
EXTRAS - PER UNIT CHARGES (APPROX. 32 GALLONS PER UNIT) RATE PER EACH

XBAG EXTRA BAG(S) 3.75$  2.70% 0.10$        3.85$  

XBOX EXTRA BOX 3.75$  2.70% 0.10$        3.85$  

XCAN EXTRA CAN(S) 3.75$  2.70% 0.10$        3.85$  

XMISC EXTRA MISC 3.75$  2.70% 0.10$        3.85$  

X32 EXTRA 32G CART(S) 3.75$  2.70% 0.10$        3.85$  

X90 EXTRA 90G CART(S) 5.93$  2.70% 0.16$        6.09$  

BULKY ITEM COLLECTION (SVC CHARGE + CHARGE PER ITEM)

RATES LISTED ARE FOR COLLECTION AT CURB.  ADDITIONAL CHARGES MAY APPLY FOR RETRIEVAL. RATE PER EACH

APF REFRIGERATOR/FREEZER 29.29$          0.00% -$          29.29$          

APL APPLIANCE 11.72$          0.00% -$          11.72$          

FURN FURNITURE CHARGE 17.57$          0.00% -$          17.57$          

TREE EXTRA CHRISTMAS TREE 7.49$  2.70% 0.20$        7.69$  

IRSC IN ROUTE SERVICE CHARGE 19.59$          2.70% 0.53$        20.12$          

SC SERVICE CHARGE 103.18$         2.70% 2.79$        105.97$         

RELATED FEES RATE PER EACH

CRIR CART REDELIVERY IN ROUTE 10.00$          0.00% -$          10.00$          

CROR CART REDELIVER OUT OF ROUTE 20.00$          0.00% -$          20.00$          

CORDF CONTAINER RE-DELIVERY FEE 103.18$         2.70% 2.79$        105.97$         
Note: Re-Delivery fees apply for resume service after suspend.

RATE PER EACH

CCF CART CLEANING FEE 10.00$          0.00% -$          10.00$          

CRF CART REPLACEMENT FEE 65.00$          0.00% -$          65.00$          
Note: Replacement fee is used for loss/damage beyond normal wear and tear.

RATE PER EACH

WLI WIND LATCH INSTALLATION 15.00$          0.00% -$          15.00$          

RF REINSTATEMENT FEE 15.00$          0.00% -$          15.00$          

NSFCF RETURNED CHECK FEE 25.00$          0.00% -$          25.00$          

FRONT-LOAD CONTAINER SERVICE
1 YARD CONTAINERS MONTHLY RATES

1GW 1YD TRASH 113.58$         2.70% 3.07$        116.65$         

1GE 1YD TRASH EOW 69.13$          2.70% 1.87$        71.00$          

1GM 1YD TRASH MONTHLY 45.21$          2.70% 1.22$        46.43$          

1OC ON CALL-1YD TRASH 22.58$          2.70% 0.61$        23.19$          

1XP EXTRA PICK UP-1YD TRASH 22.58$          2.70% 0.61$        23.19$          

1.5 YARD CONTAINERS MONTHLY RATES

1HGW 1.5YD TRASH 142.14$         2.70% 3.84$        145.98$         

1HGE 1.5YD TRASH EOW 83.41$          2.70% 2.25$        85.66$          

1HGM 1.5YD TRASH MONTHLY 51.81$          2.70% 1.40$        53.21$          

1HOC ON CALL-1.5YD TRASH 29.84$          2.70% 0.81$        30.65$          

1HXP EXTRA PICK UP-1.5YD TRASH 29.84$          2.70% 0.81$        30.65$          

RWO-DWL Page 2 of 4 5/23/2019
112



RECOLOGY WESTERN OREGON SUMMARY RATE SHEET

WIL CITY OF WILLAMINA EFF. DATE: 7/1/2019

CURRENT NEW

CODE DESCRIPTION RATE INC % INC $$ RATE

2 YARD CONTAINERS MONTHLY RATES

2GW 2YD TRASH 170.69$         2.70% 4.61$        175.30$         

2GE 2YD TRASH EOW 97.70$          2.70% 2.64$        100.34$         

2GM 2YD TRASH MONTHLY 58.41$          2.70% 1.58$        59.99$          

2OC ON CALL-2YD TRASH 37.08$          2.70% 1.00$        38.08$          

2XP EXTRA PICK UP-2YD TRASH 37.08$          2.70% 1.00$        38.08$          

3 YARD CONTAINERS MONTHLY RATES

3GW 3YD TRASH 227.82$         2.70% 6.15$        233.97$         

3GE 3YD TRASH EOW 126.25$         2.70% 3.41$        129.66$         

3GM 3YD TRASH MONTHLY 71.62$          2.70% 1.93$        73.55$          

3OC ON CALL-3YD TRASH 51.61$          2.70% 1.39$        53.00$          

3XP EXTRA PICK UP-3YD TRASH 51.61$          2.70% 1.39$        53.00$          

4 YARD CONTAINERS MONTHLY RATES

4GW 4YD TRASH 284.96$         2.70% 7.69$        292.65$         

4GE 4YD TRASH EOW 154.84$         2.70% 4.18$        159.02$         

4GM 4YD TRASH MONTHLY 84.80$          2.70% 2.29$        87.09$          

4OC ON CALL-4YD TRASH 66.12$          2.70% 1.79$        67.91$          

4XP EXTRA PICK UP-4YD TRASH 66.12$          2.70% 1.79$        67.91$          

5 YARD CONTAINERS MONTHLY RATES

5GW 5YD TRASH 342.09$         2.70% 9.24$        351.33$         

5GE 5YD TRASH EOW 183.38$         2.70% 4.95$        188.33$         

5GM 5YD TRASH MONTHLY 97.99$          2.70% 2.65$        100.64$         

5OC ON CALL-5YD TRASH 80.64$          2.70% 2.18$        82.82$          

5XP EXTRA PICK UP-5YD TRASH 80.64$          2.70% 2.18$        82.82$          

6 YARD CONTAINERS MONTHLY RATES

6GW 6YD TRASH 399.23$         2.70% 10.78$       410.01$         

6GE 6YD TRASH EOW 211.95$         2.70% 5.72$        217.67$         

6GM 6YD TRASH MONTHLY 111.18$         2.70% 3.00$        114.18$         

6OC ON CALL-6YD TRASH 95.15$          2.70% 2.57$        97.72$          

6XP EXTRA PICK UP-6YD TRASH 95.15$          2.70% 2.57$        97.72$          

8 YARD CONTAINERS No new customers at this size - safety issues

8GW 8YD TRASH 472.56$         2.70% 12.76$       485.32$         

8GE 8YD TRASH EOW 248.63$         2.70% 6.71$        255.34$         

8GM 8YD TRASH MONTHLY 128.11$         2.70% 3.46$        131.57$         

8OC ON CALL-8YD TRASH 113.77$         2.70% 3.07$        116.84$         

8XP EXTRA PICK UP-8YD TRASH 113.77$         2.70% 3.07$        116.84$         

CONTAINER MONTHLY RENT (CHARGED TO WILL-CALL CUSTOMERS, SAME FOR ALL SIZES)

RNT1 1YD RENT - TRASH 20.00$          0.00% -$          20.00$          

FRONT-LOAD COMPACTOR RATE FACTORS - For all compacted material, including pre-compacted waste.

Compactor Rating 4 : 1 3 : 1 2 : 1

Factor applied to container rate of same size 1.5 1.3 1.12

RWO-DWL Page 3 of 4 5/23/2019
113



RECOLOGY WESTERN OREGON SUMMARY RATE SHEET

WIL CITY OF WILLAMINA EFF. DATE: 7/1/2019

CURRENT NEW

CODE DESCRIPTION RATE INC % INC $$ RATE

DEBRIS BOX  SERVICES
SET HAUL FEES (BASED ON AVERAGE TRUCK TIMES) RATE PER HAUL

DEL DELIVERY CHARGE 103.18$         2.70% 2.79$        105.97$         

10HG TRASH BOX HAUL FEE (ALL SIZES) 175.89$         2.70% 4.75$        180.64$         

40CG COMPACTOR HAUL FEE (ALL SIZES) 210.02$         2.70% 5.67$        215.69$         

DEBRIS BOX DISPOSAL FEES RATE PER UNIT

DFDM DISPOSAL FEE - DEMOLITION ($$/TON) 42.76$          3.00% 1.28$        44.04$          

DFG DISPOSAL FEE - GARBAGE ($$/TON) 42.76$          3.00% 1.28$        44.04$          

DFWD DISPOSAL FEE - CLEAN WOOD ($$/TON) 33.60$          21.03% 7.07$        40.67$          

DFYD DISPOSAL FEE - YARD DEBRIS ($$/YD
3
) 14.00$          0.00% -$          14.00$          

Note: Recycling ton fees will be equal to or less than trash fees, based on current market pricing.

TEMPORARY DEBRIS BOXES - COD RATES (INCLUDES HAUL & AVERAGE DISPOSAL FOR BOX SIZE)

10DG 10 YARD BOX W/DISPOSAL 233.43$         2.70% 6.30$        239.73$         

20DG 20 YARD BOX W/DISPOSAL 327.64$         2.70% 8.85$        336.49$         

30DG 30 YARD BOX W/DISPOSAL 421.87$         2.70% 11.39$       433.26$         

RELATED FEES RATE PER DAY

RENTD DAILY RENTAL FEE 8.66$  2.70% 0.23$        8.89$  

Note: Daily Rent applies after 48 hours, excluding evenings and weekends.

RENTM MONTHLY RENTAL FEE 122.33$         2.70% 3.30$        125.63$         

Note: Monthly rent applies for customers who keep a box for a year or longer. RATE PER HOUR

TIME TRUCK TIME FEE 117.26$         2.70% 3.17$        120.43$         

1T1E 1 TRUCK - 1 EMPLOYEE 117.26$         2.70% 3.17$        120.43$         

1T2E 1 TRUCK - 2 EMPLOYEES 175.90$         2.70% 4.75$        180.65$         
Note: Hourly Truck Time is used for hauls to destinations outside our normal operating areas.

TEMPORARY RENTAL CONTAINERS RATE PER EACH

3YRGD DELV 3 YD RENTAL FOR TRASH 25.93$          2.70% 0.70$        26.63$          

3YRGP SERVICE 3 YD RENTAL FOR TRASH 72.23$          2.70% 1.95$        74.18$          

3YRXD ADDL DAY - 3YD RENT CONTAINER 2.00$  0.00% -$          2.00$  
Note: Temporary = not longer than 30 days, with 45 days between projects.  Rent included for first 7 days.

BULKY ITEMS - DEBRIS BOX
STARDARD FEES APPLY FOR THESE ITEMS IF DECLARED & SEPARATED ACCORDING TO INSTRUCTIONS.

ADDITIONAL FEES MAY APPLY FOR ITEMS FOUND IN LOADS. RATE PER EACH

TOFFR TIRE CHARGE NO RIM 4.69$  0.00% -$          4.69$  

TONR TIRE CHARGE ON RIM 9.37$  0.00% -$          9.37$  

APPL APPLIANCE 11.72$          0.00% -$          11.72$          

APF REFRIGERATOR/FREEZER 29.29$          0.00% -$          29.29$          

MEDICAL WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES RATE PER EACH

M4HSC 4.7 QT SHARPS CONTAINER 28.51$          0.00% -$          28.51$          

M10SC 10 QT SHARPS CONTAINER 31.45$          0.00% -$          31.45$          

M23SC 23 QT SHARPS CONTAINER 51.77$          0.00% -$          51.77$          

9CDBC 9GAL CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT BOX 37.11$          0.00% -$          37.11$          

M21BX 21 GAL MEDICAL WASTE BOX 42.16$          0.00% -$          42.16$          

M48BX 48 GAL MEDICAL WASTE BOX 48.20$          0.00% -$          48.20$          

M8GBP RX MED WASTE TUB 97.46$          0.00% -$          97.46$          
Note: Additional fees may apply for overweight tubs.  Improperly prepared materials cannot be collected.

Finance Charges (0.75% monthly, 9% annually) will be assessed on any past due amount

 (excluding amounts in dispute over billing or service issues).  

Billing Terms: Commercial Accounts are billed on a monthly basis.  

Residential accounts are billed once every three months, in advance.

RATE PER MONTH

RWO-DWL Page 4 of 4 5/23/2019
114



   

Yearly Schedule of Events
CITY OF WILLAMNA CITY COUNCIL 

February
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 02/02/19 (Sat) Groundhog Day holiday

1 2 02/11/19 (Mon) Cemetery Committee Meeting meeting
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 02/12/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 02/12/19 (Tue) Lincoln's Birthday holiday
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 02/14/19 (Thu) Valentines Day holiday
24 25 26 27 28 02/18/19 (Mon) President's Day - City Hall is Closed holiday

02/19/19 (Tue) Library Board Meeeting meeting
 NO PLANNNG COMMISSION MTG FEB meeting
02/21/19 (Thu) Work Session - Law Enforcement Needs meeting

 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa

1 2 March
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 03/04/19 (Mon) TENTATIVE-WORK SESSION CC GOALS meeting

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 03/05/19 (Tue) Plannng Commission Regular Meeting meeting
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 03/10/19 (Sun) Daylight Saving (move clocks ahead 1 hour) event
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 03/12/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
31 03/19/19 (Tue) Library Board Meeting meeting

Su M Tu W Th F Sa April
1 2 3 4 5 6 04/02/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 04/08/19 (Mon) Cemetery Committee Meeting meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 04/09/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 04/15/19 (Mon) SEI Filing Deadline - Ethics Comission Filing deadline
28 29 30 31 04/16/19 (Tues) TENTATIVE - WORK SESSION -TRANSPORATholiday

04/16/19 (Tues) Library Board Meeting meeting

May
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 05/07/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Meeting Canceled meeting

1 2 3 4 05/14/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 05/16/19 (Thu) City County Dinner May 16 in Carlton event

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 05/20/19 (Mon) Work Session on Transportation meeting
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 05/21/19 (Tue) Budget Committee Meeting 21st, 22nd meeting
26 27 28 29 30 31 05/21/19 (Tue) Library Board Meeting meeting

05/27/19 (Mon) Memorial Day - City Hall is Closed holiday

Su M Tu W Th F Sa June
1 06/04/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting NOTE NEW DATE meeting

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 06/11/19 (Tue) No Meeting meeting
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 06/10/19 (Mon) Cemetery Committee Meeting meeting

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 06/16/19 (Sun) Father's Day holiday
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 06/18/19 (Tue) Library Board Meeting meeting
30 06/24/19 (Tue) Special City Council Meeting if needed meeting

06/25/19 (Tue) Planning Commission (moved from June 4th) meeting

Su M Tu W Th F Sa July
1 2 3 4 5 6 07/04/19 (Thu) Independence day - CITY HALL CLOSED holiday

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 07/02/19 (Tues) Planning Commission meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 07/15/19 (Tues) Deadline for filing the LB 50 meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 07/16/19 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting Note New Date meeting
28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa August
1 2 3 08/06/19 (Tues) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 08/13/19 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

February 2019

March 2019

April 2019

August 2019

May 2019

June 2019

July 2019

115


	1. 2019.06.04.CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	1.a.CONSENT AGENDA
	2. 04-30-19 Check Register
	3. 04-30-19 Financial Statements
	4. 2019.05.04.CC.REGULAR MTG MINUTES.corporate-minutes-4495090
	5.0. Staff Report on Use of the Tina Miller Park - Copy
	5.0.0.Letter to City for Park Use
	6.REGULAR AGENDA
	7.CONTRACT FOR LAND USE PLANNING SERVICES
	8. STAFF REPORT & RES. 18-19-021.ON EXCESSIVE FORCE POLICY
	9. STAFF REPORT HOUSING RESOLUTION 18-19-022
	13.0.Staff Report on Master Fee Schedule
	13.a.18-19-23 Master Fee Schedule Resolution
	13.b.City of Willamna Master Fee Schedule
	13.c.Staff Report_TGM Support_Resolution 18-19-024_June 4, 2019
	13.d.18.19-024 TSP Grant Support
	13.D.D.POLICE SERVICES AGREEMENT
	13.e.PUBLIC HEARINGS
	14.0. Staff Report on Resolution 18-19-17 City's Election to Receive State Revenues
	14.a.18.19.17. Resolution Declaring the City's Election to Receive State Revenues - Copy (1)
	15.0. Staff Report on Resolution 18.19.18 Certify four services1
	15.a.18.19.18. Resolution certify that it provides the following four municipal services - Copy (2)
	16.0. Staff Report on Resolution 18.19.19.Adopting the budget - Copy
	16.a18.19.19. Resolution Adopting the FY 20192020 Budget, as amended, making appropriations and imposing & Categorizing Taxes - Copy (3)
	17.0. Staff Report on RWO Proposed Rates
	1. The Summary Rate Sheet that is attached to the resolution shows the current and proposed rates.  The primary reason for the increase is an annual CPI-U cost of living increase of 2.70%.
	2. Section 9, subsection (c) (2) of the Franchise Agreement requires holding a public hearing on the proposed rates.
	3. Council has the authority to either approve or not approve the rate increase as stated in Section 9, subsection (c) (3) of the Franchise Agreement.
	4. The Franchise fee received from this franchisee is approximately $5,000 per year.
	Proposed Motion: I move to approve Resolution 18-19-020 approving the proposed Recology Western Oregon rate increase as presented.

	17.0.0.Recology Resolution18.19.20
	17.0.1.0.Willamina CPI Cover Letter 5-23-19
	17.0.2.cpi table April 2019 EXHIBIT Ax
	17.0.3.RWO PROPOSED RATES - WIL 7-1-19.1
	20.21.2019 yearly_schedule_of_events
	Schedule
	Sheet1
	Help
	©




